
 

Finance Committee Meeting 
 Cravath Lakefront room 2nd floor 312 West 

Whitewater Str, Whitewater, WI, 53190 *In Person 
and Virtual 

Tuesday, December 26, 2023 - 5:00 PM 

Citizens are welcome (and encouraged) to join our webinar via computer, smart phone, or telephone.  
Citizen participation is welcome during topic discussion periods. 

Please click the link below to join the webinar:   

12/26/2023 Finance Committee Meeting 
Dec 26, 2023, 5:00 – 6:00 PM (America/Chicago) 
 
 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://meet.goto.com/982280285 
 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
Access Code: 982-280-285 
United States: +1 (872) 240-3212 
 
 
Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://meet.goto.com/install 

 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Items on the Consent Agenda will be approved together unless any committee member requests that an 
item be removed for individual consideration. 

1. October 12, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

2. October 16, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

3. October 24, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

4. November 28, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

HEARING OF CITIZEN COMMENTS 
No formal Committee action will be taken during this meeting although issues raised may become a part 
of a future agenda.  Participants are allotted a three minute speaking period. Specific items listed on the 
agenda may not be discussed at this time; however, citizens are invited to speak to those specific issues 
at the time the Committee discusses that particular item. 

1



Finance Committee Meeting Agenda December 26, 2023 Page 2 

 

To make a comment during this period, or during any agenda item: On a computer or handheld device, 
locate the controls on your computer to raise your hand. You may need to move your mouse to see 
these controls. On a traditional telephone, dial *6 to unmute your phone and dial *9 to raise your 
hand. 

CONSIDERATIONS / DISCUSSIONS / REPORTS 

5. November 2023 Financials 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

6. Compensation Study 

7. Policy Review 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
A quorum of the Common Council may be present. This notice is given to inform the public that no formal action 

will be taken at this meeting. 

 
Anyone requiring special arrangements is asked to call the Office of the  

City Manager / City Clerk (262-473-0102) at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

2



 

 

ABSTRACT/SYNOPSIS OF THE ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF THE OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE FINANCE 

COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF WHITEWATER, WALWORTH AND JEFFERSON COUNTIES, WISCONSIN 

Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of October 12, 2023 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Lisa Dawsey-Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

Present at the meeting were committee members David Stone, Jill Gerber, and Lisa Dawsey 

Smith. 

Absent:  N/A. Staff and guests present:  Finance Director Rachelle Blitch, Brad Marquardt, Ben 

Mielke, and Jim Bergner. 

2. Hearing of Citizen Comments  

None 

3. 2024-2025 Budget Review (2 of 3) 

a. Public Works (Administration, Shop/Fleet Operations, Street Maintenance, Street 

Ice/Snow, and Street Lights) – Marquardt noted there was nothing out of the usual in the 

budget items.  Gerber asked about the engineering expense being low and Marquardt 

explained that those are for services not tied to a specific project.  Gerber asked about the 

electricity expense as she had expected it to go down after the bulb replacements. 

Marquardt stated that only some of the bulbs have been replaced. Dawsey-Smith added 

that she recalled that while they were more efficient there was a higher fee being assessed 

by WE Energies.  Marquardt noted that when replacing the bulbs it can take up to seven 

years to see the cost decrease and that the upfront cost to replace is higher but the 

electricity is actually lower.  Stone wondered if the city had considered using shorter street 

lights as an option so when a bulb needs to be replaced the city can do it instead of having 

WE Energies do it.  Marquardt responded that those lights are similar to the decorative 

lighting in downtown and that the city is responsible for the maintenance and costs 

associated with them.  Dawsey-Smith asked if some of the costs of the lighting in 2023 could 

be expensed to the associated TIDs.  Marquardt stated it could and he would check into it. 

b. Fund 215 Equipment Replacement –Stone inquired about the 2023 expenses in the Rolling 

Stock line item as it was projected to be significantly over budget but also noted that the 

2024 vs 2025 budget were significantly different.  Marquardt said he would need the full 

document to answer the question about the 2023 anticipated expenses and Dawsey-Smith 

explained the difference with the 2024-2025 budgeted items was  because they didn’t have 

anything scheduled to be purchased/replaced in 2025. 

c. Fund 230 Solid Waste Recycling –Stone inquired about the rate increases and Marquardt 

explained the Council had already approved the rate increase and that it will be included in 

the revised budget and that he does expect John’s Disposal to do another rate increase in 

2025. Dawsey-Smith explained that they are allowed to ask for an increase each year that 

corresponds to CPI. Marquardt explained the increase for 2024 was $0.27 which came to 

approximately $12,000.   

d. Forestry – Marquardt noted it was the year to treat Ash trees and that’s the reason for the 

increase from 2023. 

3

Item 1.



 

 

e. Street Repair – Dawsey-Smith inquired if this was an area that potential surplus could be 

allocated and Marquardt stated he does typically ask for additional funds to be set aside 

when possible.  Marquardt stated they have plans to repave Pearson Ct, Pearson Ln, 

Meadowview Ct in anticipation of development, multiple streets being seal-coated along 

with the asphalt at the wastewater plant, and some of the projects will get charged out. 

f. Water Utility – Stone was concerned regarding the reallocation of the Vanderlip Lift Station 

between water and sewer.  Marquardt explained that the sewer user rate charges must be 

used on sewer projects but the borrowing is something that can be switched between 

projects.  Stone asked if we would be borrowing additional money for the lift station and 

Marquardt responded that we would but 50% of the borrowing is eligible for principle 

forgiveness from the clean water loan.  Gerber asked about the 300 accounts with a budget 

of 1.8M.  Blitch explained the amount was the summary of all of the accounts. Stone asked if 

the Well 7 modification was getting rid of the reservoir and Bergner confirmed it was. 

g. Wastewater Utility – Stone asked if the rate increase took effect in March of 2022 and 

Marquardt responded that it did.  Gerber questioned the revenue amounts between 2024 

and 2025 as it appeared we were losing revenue.  Marquardt speculated that it could be due 

to the increased water credit going from three months to six months. Stone inquired about 

the amount of interest on debt.  Marquardt explained that the city had a $22M project and 

that it was to be expected.  Dawsey-Smith also explained that the city saved a lot of money 

by doing the borrowing for two years versus one year. Stone asked for the status on the 

Vanderlip project and Marquardt explained that it would be constructed in 2024 and that 

Karen (Comptroller) was working to complete the CIP list and would update the summary 

pages to reflect those costs. 

h. Stormwater Utility – Marquardt stated we should look at the cost per ERU as it was last 

updated in December of 2015 from 558 to 617 and we will have projects coming up for 

detention ponds.  He further explained the city would be able to handle the majority of the 

projects however, there are a couple that will need to be contracted out. 

i. Rock River Stormwater Group – Stone asked if we were the only ones participating in this 

group.  Marquardt stated there are approximately twelve municipalities in the group and 

potentially two other towns joining.  Dawsey-Smith noted the professional services cost is 

causing the city to draw from the reserves.  Marquardt explained the city has a couple of 

invoices for marketing that are not posted yet but that there is a plan to spend the balance.  

Stone asked if the dam repairs were for Tripp or Cravath. Marquardt noted the city has 

repairs that were required to be done on Cravath in 2023 however, because it wasn’t 

budgeted for permission was given by the DNR to do those repairs in 2024. 

j. Media Services – Gerber inquired about the $45,000 transfer to the fund and Blitch 

explained it’s from the general fund to support the activities of media services since the 

fund isn’t self-sufficient.  Gerber inquired whether the chief of staff’s salary was split and 

included in this fund.  Blitch stated she believed it was but would verify that information.  

Gerber asked if the position of the Media Coordinator would be filled.  Blitch confirmed that 

the city is accepting applications until October 22nd.  Blitch explained that the $45,000 

transfer listed on the budget document would be updated since the city is expected to have 

a surplus in 2023 in which they will prefund this transfer. Gerber asked about the 

engagement numbers and was concerned the cost of the cable tv station might not be 

4

Item 1.



 

 

worth keeping it.  Dawsey-Smith explained the city has requested the information from 

Charter but they will not release the data. 

k. Parking Permits – Stone asked what the target fund balance of $120,000 is for and Dawsey-

Smith explained the fund balance is used to pave/repair parking lots and Blitch added that 

once the target fund balance is reached the city would stop allocating funds in years that 

have an adequate fund balance. 

l. Rideshare Grant Program – Gerber asked if we had received any funding this year and Blitch 

stated the city did receive the $49,000 and that she had recently spoken to WisDOT who 

said they were behind on processing the reports and that we should receive the revenue by 

the end of the month.  Dawsey-Smith inquired about the contract for the next five years and 

Blitch explained that she had just received the one proposal the day before and the cost was 

a 9% increase from previous years. 

m. Sick Leave Severance – Stone asked about who qualifies for this and Dawsey-Smith 

explained that only the people who were hired before 2011 are eligible and only a handful 

of people remain. 

n. Insurance SIR – No comments. 

o. Birge Fountain – Marquardt stated there is a project on the horizon that Landmarks is 

requesting the city do but this is not something the city typically sets money aside for so it 

would need to be fundraised or borrowed for.  Stone stated he heard concerns from citizens 

who wanted to make donations but were worried the money would be spent on something 

else and asked if there was a way to get reassurance that the money donated would be 

spent on the project.  Blitch explained that is the essence of fund accounting and that the 

money received stays with the associated fund and must be used on approved projects. 

p. Depot Restoration – No comments. 

q. Innovation Center – The expenses were missing from the packet.  Stone made a motion to 

move this to the October 16th meeting. Gerber seconded the motion. 

4. Future Agenda Items 

● Update on Library expansion funding 

● Starin Water Tower 

● Employee bonus update 

● Compensation study update 

● Updated Financials 

5. Discussion of Next Meeting Date 

Next regular meeting date was set for October 24, 2023 at 4:30pm. 

Special finance committee meetings for budget review were set as follows: 

October 16th at 3:30pm 

6. Adjournment 

Gerber moved, Dawsey-Smith seconded adjournment. Motion carried on unanimous voice vote. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:00 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Rachelle Blitch 

5

Item 1.



 

 

Director of Finance and Administrative Services. 

6

Item 1.



 

 

ABSTRACT/SYNOPSIS OF THE ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF THE OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE FINANCE 

COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF WHITEWATER, WALWORTH AND JEFFERSON COUNTIES, WISCONSIN 

Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of October 16, 2023 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Lisa Dawsey-Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

Present at the meeting were committee members David Stone, Jill Gerber, and Lisa Dawsey 

Smith. 

Absent:  N/A. Staff and guests present:  Finance Director Rachelle Blitch, Brad Marquardt, 

Michelle Dujardin, and Kevin Boehm. 

Hearing of Citizen Comments  

None 

2. 2024-2025 Budget Review (3 of 3) 

a. Innovation Center –Stone asked if we were still using DPW for maintenance and grounds 

expenses and Dawsey-Smith responded the Tech Park Board made the decision to contract 

it out since it was beyond the scope of what DPW could do.  Marquardt confirmed that was 

accurate. Gerber inquired why some accounts were highlighted yellow.  Dawsey-Smith 

stated it was due to the leases not being adjusted at the beginning of the year so the 

revenue would be off. 

b. Parks & Recreation –Stone asked if there would be any funds for professional development.  

Blitch confirmed they have money for conferences and training.  Geber inquired about what 

the “Community Events and Awards” account is for.  Gerber asked what the $11,000 under 

Senior Citizen’s Program was for and Dujardin responded that it is for concerts in the park 

and other events like Halloween.  Gerber asked if it was strictly for seniors and Dujardin 

responded that these events are community wide.  Stone inquired about the WAFC 

contributions and whether these numbers would change after the vote three nights ago.  

Dawsey-Smith confirmed these numbers would not change. 

c. Building Repair – Dawsey-Smith noted that this is one of the City’s opportunities to look at 

towards the end of the year whether it’s needed or not.  Blitch made note to follow up.   

d. Skate Park – No comments.  

e. Parkland Acquisition – Stone was concerned if anyone is ensuring that funds are collected 

when there’s a new development and Dawsey-Smith responded that she assumes it goes 

through Neighborhood Services when there’s a permit.  Marquardt confirmed.   

f. Parkland Development – Stone was concerned there aren’t finds set aside for the Effigy 

Mounds because there is an interest in keeping them maintained.  Dawsey-Smith asked if he 

was asking for consideration to fund a capital outlay account for the Effigy Mounds and 

Stone confirmed. 

g. Field of Dreams –Dawsey-Smith inquired when the field was due to be replaced. Dujardin 

responded they are working with Hunter on this.  Dawsey-Smith asked if there was a target 

fund balance and Blitch responded it was $100,000. 

h. Aquatic Center – Gerber requested an explanation of the front desk staff overages.  

Dujardin explained during the lifeguard shortage they were using front desk staff to 

complete some of the tasks and they were training more new staff.  Gerber asked if the 

aquatics line is where the lifeguards are budgeted and was concerned because it appears as 

7

Item 2.



 

 

if we are doubling that line item.  Dujardin explained during the shortage we increased the 

wages from $9/hour to $13/hour and Blitch added that the budget amount reflects the 

center fully staffed.  Gerber asked about the facility rentals as it appears we are budgeting 

to bring in more than usual.  Dujardin confirmed and explained they have done some 

marketing but they have to have at least two parties to break even and it’s difficult to do 

with the space so that’s something they are working on.  Stone requested that every three 

months the committee be provided with an update on the WAFC so it can be monitored. 

i. Parks & Rec Special Revenue – Stone asked if there was any interest in youth volleyball or 

basketball. Dujardin responded that volleyball will be coming back and that we do youth 

basketball but all travel ball is done through club.  Gerber stated it appears that a lot of what 

was budgeted for 2023 won’t be achieved.  Dujardin replied they don’t have instructors for 

dance or gymnastics and have advertised but have been unable to recruit.  Gerber inquired 

about the after-school program citing revenues appear to be down $20,000.  Dujardin 

responded that those should be increasing as they currently have high enrollment numbers. 

j. Lakes Improvement –Stone requested we come up with a long-term plan, possibly get a 

consultant for the lakes because there seems to be all sorts of concerns about what the 

problems are.  Dujardin responded that they are working on it and that they had a tour 

today and have talked to the company they used in 2011.  She further explained that she 

and John met with them to refresh the plan to move forward but exact costs are not known 

yet but they also have plans to start the lakes advisory committee to work through these 

issues.  Marquardt asked if the company does this for free and Dujardin responded that they 

charge for staff hours but they are not a private consultant so the fees are cheaper and they 

are educated on our lakes and community.  Gerber stated it’s going to depend on the 

direction the council wants to take. 

k. General Fund –Stone asked what the Expenditure Restraint Program was and Dawsey-Smith 

explained that it’s a payment from the state received as an incentive to control the budgets 

growth from year to year and the city didn’t qualify because of the referendum for 

Fire/EMS.  Gerber asked if the MSP payment was correct because she thought we weren’t 

supposed to receive it for 2024-2025. Blitch responded that it’s only for one year.  Stone 

inquired about the city planning services and wanted to know if this was something we were 

contracting out.  Dawsey-Smith replied that occasionally we are asked to do something 

additional but it’s rare.  Stone asked if the city could set aside $25,000 in contingencies in 

case the community would like a project done.  Dawsey-Smith stated it might be something 

we could address at the end of the year if there’s additional surplus. 

l. Neighborhood Services – Stone inquired if the drop in salaries was due to not having a FT 

employee.  Dawsey-Smith noted that if you look at the professional services line, those 

funds were moved because it’s being contracted out.  Gerber inquired whose salaries are 

allocated to Neighborhood Services.  Blitch responded that the admin assistant and the GIS 

analyst are reflected in that line.  Marquardt clarified that only a portion of the GIS analyst is 

allocated to Neighborhood Services. 

m. Administration –Stone noted the Whitewater Grant used to be $30,000 and it’s only 

$25,000 now and asked if this is something we could consider and Dawsey-Smith replied it’s 

something we can consider in future years. 

n. General Administration – No comments. 

8

Item 2.



 

 

o. Legislative Support –no comments. 

p. Contingencies – Nothing but noted for future considerations. 

q. Legal – Dawsey-Smith requested we verify the amount for the union attorney as it is low.  

Gerber responded it was likely due to it not being a union negotiation year. 

r. Municipal Court – No comments. 

s. IT – Dawsey-Smith noted it appears we are taking on another person.  Gerber inquired why 

another person was needed.  Blitch explained there is a need for an entry level desktop 

support technician to help so the director can focus on the larger projects and server 

upgrades and the new position would be able to provide additional support to the police 

department. Gerber inquired whether this meant we would be cutting down on the 

professional services line.  Blitch responded that it would but not this year as there are still 

several big projects to complete.  Gerber stated she didn’t know why we would need an 

additional person and asked if it would be part of the salary resolution.  Blitch confirmed.  

Gerber stated she would wait to see it there.  Dawsey-Smith stated it would be for general 

tickets like a laptop that isn’t working.  Gerber requested that data be collected to justify the 

position.  Blitch stated as of date there were 760 tickets resolved.  Gerber requested we go 

back to the budget document when the previous IT Administrator was here to get ticket 

data.  Marquardt stated that many times when the prior IT was called a ticket was never 

created.  Gerber said she is just asking for the data.  Blitch agreed to look for it.  

t. Finance – Gerber stated the salaries and benefits looked higher than the projected raises 

are for the next year.  Dawsey-Smith responded that the accountant position was 

benchmarked when it was vacant in 2023.  Gerber requested the salaries for everyone in the 

finance department. Blitch stated the salaries are split among the funds.  Dawsey-Smith 

asked if it was split with the utilities.  Blitch confirmed.  Gerber asked if that means the 

salaries are actually higher than what she sees in this fund and requested the salary 

information with the splits.  Blitch asked if she was okay with the information in a follow up 

email.  Gerber stated she was and requested it to be sent to everyone on the committee.   

u. Insurance/Risk Management – No comments. 

v. Emergency Preparedness – No comments. 

w. Elections – Stone inquired whether the election workers would receive a raise since it’s hard 

to get people to work the elections.  Dawsey-Smith stated she’s not sure there is an increase 

in wages but that the amount is more because there are more elections this year.  She also 

noted that the transfers are fairly consistent so there isn’t such a shock on the bigger 

election years as it builds reserves and then draws it down. 

x. Transfers – Stone inquired about the 27th payroll transfer.  Blitch explained that the fund 

was no longer needed since we are cash accounting and a transfer was made to close it out. 

y. Economic Development – Dawsey-Smith asked for confirmation that there was a change in 

status from part time to full time for the admin assistant.  Blitch confirmed. 

z. TID 4 – Dawsey-Smith asked if we anticipate the transfer out for admin costs to continue 

through 2026 and what the cap is.  Blitch stated she would look into this. 

aa. TID 10 – Stone asked if the amounts shown were wishful thinking or if there was something 

being built.  Dawsey-Smith noted that something was being built.  Gerber stated the 

contractor costs were in 2025 so something must be being built and Dawsey-Smith stated it 

was something Council had already approved. 

9

Item 2.



 

 

bb. TID 11 – No comments. 

cc. TID 12 – Stone stated his concern about budgeting without having projects because it is 

difficult for downtown businesses to be successful. 

dd. TID 13 – Stone asked if the transfer out to the water utility was for the water tower.  

Dawsey-Smith responded that there are portions of the water tower and Vanderlip project 

that the TIDs are covering.  Marquardt stated it was only the water tower since the 

Vanderlip project hadn’t been completed yet. 

ee. TID 14 – No comment. 

ff. CIP – Blitch explained that Ehler’s ran two separate scenarios for the borrowing of the 

library and noted that tax years 2029 and 2030 would have considerable increases.  Stone 

stated that it looks to almost double and asked if we could have Ehler’s use $200,000 for the 

average property value instead of the $400,000.  Blitch stated that comparing whether to 

borrow in 2024 versus 2025 wouldn’t be a significant difference.  Stone noted that the $7.5 

million for the DPW garage significantly impacts the borrowing and wondered if there would 

be a way it could be scaled back or if we could delay something.  Gerber stated the big item 

was the DPW garage.  Dawsey-Smith noted that it’s a future item and will be something that 

is discussed and that it’s something he can request as a future agenda item.  Stone inquired 

if the budget can be passed without passing all of the projects on the CIP list.  Dawsey-Smith 

stated that they are only approving the items for 2024-2025 at this time.  Gerber asked if 

they approve it does that mean it approved the library.  Dawsey-Smith confirmed and noted 

that they are only giving a recommendation to the Council and they will either approve it or 

remove it.  Gerber asked if we could confirm what the $100,000 and the $110,000 shown 

for the lakes is for.  Blitch stated she would follow up with an answer.  Gerber requested 

that the library come off as a discussion item for the Common Council.  Stone inquired 

whether Walworth Ave. is being done in 2025 was due to funding.  Marquardt responded 

that the DOT sets the year for those projects.  Gerber asked if they needed to recommend 

scenario 1 or 2.  Dawsey-Smith responded they would present it to Council as it is and the 

only reason to delay borrowing would be if there was a high level of certainty that interest 

rates would go down.  Geber stated her concern for the upcoming lakes projects and the 

potential costs associated and the changes in the funding for the Aquatics Center.  Dawsey-

Smith stated she would like to know the impact on the City’s credit rating would be if we 

waited to borrow.  Gerber stated that if it’s between the lakes and the library she would 

prefer to spend the money on the lakes.  Dawsey-Smith stated they already have $3 million 

in donations for the library.  Gerber responded that she wasn’t suggesting putting it off 

indefinitely but waiting to see what the lakes cost first.   

gg. Debt Service – No comments. 

hh. Capital Project Fund 450 – Gerber inquired whether the $125,000 was for the dredging of 

the lakes.  Blitch confirmed.  Dawsey-Smith noted the roof replacement for the municipal 

building was on Ehler’s list but wasn’t reflected in the budget and asked to look into that.   

3. 2024 Budget Recommendation 

Chairperson Dawsey-Smith recommended the 2024 budget to Council.  Gerber 

seconded. 

Yes: Dawsey-Smith, Gerber, Stone 

No: None 

10

Item 2.



 

 

4. Future Agenda Items 

● Starin Water Tower 

● Employee bonus update 

● Compensation study update 

● Updated Financials 

5. Discussion of Next Meeting Date 

October 24, 2023 at 4:30pm. 

6. Adjournment 

Gerber moved, Stone seconded adjournment. Motion carried on unanimous voice vote. Meeting 

adjourned at 7:03 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Rachelle Blitch 

Director of Finance and Administrative Services. 

11

Item 2.



 

 

ABSTRACT/SYNOPSIS OF THE ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF THE OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE FINANCE 

COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF WHITEWATER, WALWORTH AND JEFFERSON COUNTIES, WISCONSIN 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of October 24, 2023 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Dawsey-Smith called the meeting to order at 4:30 pm. 

Present at the meeting were committee members David Stone, and Lisa Dawsey Smith. 

Absent:  Jill Gerber. Staff and guests present:  Finance Director Rachelle Blitch. 

 

2. Hearing of Citizen Comments  

None 

3. Staff Updates 

a. Financial Update – YTD through September 2023 – Blitch gave a brief overview of the 

financial statements and noted the changes in revenue for wastewater were due to the 

changes at the power plant as it relates to the 2024-2025 budget. Stone inquired about the 

general fund tax revenue 2023 budgeted versus actual with a difference of $101,000.  Blitch 

made note to look into it.  Stone also inquired about a transfer to the fire department 

because it only showed a partial.  Blitch explained that they would still get those funds when 

the Comptroller makes the next transfer.  Stone asked if we would be receiving the 

remaining budgeted funds for the shared revenues.  Blitch stated she would look into it and 

thinks those might be some of the payments the City is waiting for.  Stone inquired about 

the 12-month inflation graph and Dawsey-Smith explained that even though the rate for 

September was close to the rate in January doesn’t mean the prices are back to what they 

were but rather than inflation is growing at a slower rate.  Stone asked for clarification 

regarding the general fund operating yield graph.  Blitch explained that it’s the rate we are 

receiving for the balance in our operating fund and not a special investment account.  

Dawsey-Smith further explained that looking at inflation is the pressure on the cost of 

operations including wages, and that the graph for treasury shows what bonds will be 

looking like for when we borrow again.  

4. Wastewater Rate Increase 

a. Blitch explained that Ehler’s had previously done a long-term cash analysis and that they 

anticipated a rate increase of 5% in 2024, but because some of the projects have shifted 

since we weren’t able to complete the Vanderlip lift station they are updating the cash 

analysis to reflect those changes and it would be reasonable to assume the rate increase 

could be lowered.  Dawsey-Smith inquired about the borrowing we had previously done 

for the Vanderlip project and Blitch explained that those funds had to be reallocated to 

other projects since the project had to be pushed back which meant we had to update 

the borrowing to reflect the projects that were funded.  Stone stated his reason for 

concern with the rate increase was being able to give the community enough of a notice 

before the rate increase became effective and if possible requested the rate be a lower 

amount and spread out over a couple of years.  Blitch stated she would notify the 

committee once the updated cash flow analysis was available and they could determine 

12

Item 3.



 

 

whether the committee would need to meet again before the November 21st Council 

meeting. 

5. Starin Water Tower 

a. Stone inquired if the recommendation was whether or not the referendum would be for this 

year.  Dawsey-Smith explained that there was no official action taken so it would need to go 

back to Council to decide and that there was a discussion to send this to the finance 

committee but without direction.  Stone noted that he hadn’t heard a lot of interest at this 

time.  Dawsey-Smith responded she wouldn’t recommend putting a referendum question 

on the ballot in 2024 as she believes it would be affected by the presidential election.  She 

also noted the expected life of the tower would be 5-10 years with maintenance needing to 

start after the 5-year mark.  Blitch explained that Gerber’s concern is that we would need to 

start putting funds aside for the project; however, we would need to know what project we 

are saving for since the PSC would only allow utilizing funds for demolition and not for 

restoration. She further explained that if the City decided to restore the water tower those 

funds would need to come from the general fund and it’s not something she would 

recommend however, if there’s enough interest in saving the water tower it’s something 

they could try to fundraise for through another committee. 

6. Compensation Study Update 

a. Blitch stated she has been working on an internal equity study in which they identified 

employees with 20+ years of service who were not at the top of the range and adjusted 

their wages.  Dawsey-Smith noted that Gerber would like to have staff look at those 

with 10 years of experience next and then 5 years.  She further explained that she 

wanted those earning under $55,000 to be looked at to see if there was anything else 

that could be done since those individuals are most vulnerable to inflation.  Stone stated 

he would like to see those at 15 years, to also be looked at.  Blitch stated she had 

already looked at those individuals and that she is able to identify groups and ask 

questions but doesn’t have the knowledge of their prior experience that was considered 

when placed. She further explained that it’s not an exact science but it does give the 

opportunity to ask necessary questions about whether or not the placement is 

reasonable or whether an adjustment needs to be made.  Stone agreed that it’s tough.  

Dawsey-Smith stated there’s only so far you can take this before it starts to put a strain 

on their budget for their ability to be flexible within performance-based increases as 

well.  She stated she is not personally tied to anything as long as there is conscious 

thoughtful consideration on ways to retain people.  Blitch explained that’s the other 

side of retention, you can only throw so much money at employees.  Dawsey-Smith 

stated it’s only one piece of a very complex puzzle of why people stay at jobs.  Blitch 

explained that manageable workloads, clear expectations, and culture that drive 

retention even when you cannot pay top dollar.  She further explained that when you 

create environments that are focused on growth in which employees aren’t afraid to 

make mistakes you can keep them longer.  Stone asked if the City has funds if 

employees want additional training. Blitch stated that the city manager is very 

supportive of professional development and that funds are available.  Dawsey-Smith 

stated that the city manager has also extended that opportunity to Council as well 

13

Item 3.



 

 

through CVMIC which includes leadership training.  Stone noted he tried but had issues 

with the password.  Dawsey-Smith stated she appreciates the thoughtfulness that goes 

into it and for her, discretion is within staff’s expertise.  Stone agreed stating that 

whatever system staff comes up with is satisfactory with him as well.  Dawsey-Smith 

explained that this keeps coming up because there was a description of a system that 

was not being followed, being that 20% of the positions were supposed to be 

benchmarked each year and it wasn’t being done.  She further explained that it was only 

being done when the position was vacated or when an employee said they were going 

to leave if they couldn’t get a raise.  Blitch explained that compensation plans should be 

updated every 2-3 years within reason and that while there will always be budget 

constraints, you should still do what you can in other areas like manageable workloads 

and providing a good culture. Blitch added that a manageable workload is one of the 

reasons she left the previous employer.  Stone asked if this is something that people 

bring up or if they’re saying they’re overwhelmed and wanted to know if there’s 

anything we can do to support them.  Dawsey-Smith noted that’s why we’re asking for 

an additional IT position.  Blitch noted she included a graph on employee turnover 

explaining that it costs on average 33% of an employee’s salary and most of it is soft 

costs.  Stone asked for clarification on whether the figure is what we didn’t pay in 

salaries and how it was calculated.  Blitch explained that the $514,000 is actually the 

cost of turnover and that the figures were broken out by department.  Stone asked if 

this would include advertising costs.  Blitch confirmed that is one of the many costs.  

Stone asked if the police and fire had the highest number of employees and that city 

administration should have less employees.  Blitch explained that the percentages 

represented the portion of the turnover costs by department for the last 12 months and 

isn’t based on the number of employees.  Dawsey-Smith stated it can cost upwards of 

$40,000 to hire a recruiter.  Blitch responded that it includes the time and effort of 

interviewing and onboarding which removes time needed to complete other important 

tasks such as completing the employee handbook or being able to look at compensation 

studies.  She further noted it makes it difficult to be proactive since all of the time and 

effort goes into being reactive and that consistent turnover puts pressure on both 

finance and HR, some of those costs are quantifiable and some are soft costs.  Stone 

asked if the $514,000 was more than what was saved in salaries.  Dawsey-Smith stated 

it is close to even however it doesn’t include the opportunity costs of all the things that 

went undone because so much time was spent on this.  Blitch explained that those are 

the soft costs.  Stone noted that others were having to pick up the workload.  Blitch 

explained that when the previous finance director left, those tasks were picked up by 

the comptroller and when this happens after so long employees get burnt out, they feel 

rushed and mistakes happen more often. 

7. Additional IT Position 

a. Dawsey-Smith shared Gerber’s concerns, noting it was whether what was proposed was 

the best and most sustainable solution to the pain points.  Blitch explained that the city 

manager asked every department head how they could be better supported and IT was 

consistently mentioned.  She further explained that the previous administrator’s skillset 

was more than IT and it’s been difficult for anyone coming in to get things done and 

14

Item 3.



 

 

because some things hadn’t been done, we’re having to get those things caught up 

before we can move on to other projects like updating servers. Blitch also noted that it 

is difficult to keep up and the PD needs additional support so having them take time 

from their day to deal with technology issues puts added pressure on them.  Dawsey-

Smith stated Gerber’s concern about adding an additional position was whether or not 

the intent was to wean off the additional IT services received from Digicorp.  Blitch 

confirmed that was the plan however, it wouldn’t happen until 2025 since they are 

needed for several big projects in 2024.  Dawsey-Smith noted that another concern for 

Gerber was whether this was a less expensive option than simply outsourcing all of IT.  

Blitch explained that from her personal experience with the previous employer 

outsourcing IT after the director left that it ended up costing them three times the 

employees salary and that PD really needs someone in house to assist with the devices 

in their cars and since we aren’t able to provide them with extra bodies at the time, 

having someone support them in this area would be beneficial.  Stone asked how we 

could alleviate that pressure.  Blitch stated by adding the extra position for IT.  Stone 

asked if this new position would be responsible for assisting the PD as well.  Blitch 

confirmed.  Dawsey-Smith stated the memo from the current administrator of what’s 

going on, for her the most important thing to note is there are only four positions that 

are on-call 24/7; IT, the police chief, fire chief, and the city manager, and that’s a lot 

particularly for the salary range of the IT administrator.  Blitch noted it’s not a 

department you want only one person to be responsible for and part of disaster 

planning is to ensure that the department has coverage should something happen.  

Stone noted that the memo stated months back the city had a cyber security audit and a 

lack of manpower in the city’s IT department is a significant vulnerability and that 

Digicorp wrote a memo to management about inadequacies of only having one person 

in the department and noted that it seems like we definitely need to do this.  He also 

asked if there was a way to give the PD a half FTE or if the budget was too tight.  Blitch 

explained that the budget is tight but we are currently looking at the options of how and 

when to go to referendum.  Dawsey-Smith noted that it is difficult with our population 

to have an informed audience during big election cycles.  Blitch noted that there would 

have to be a 2025 referendum with funds available in 2026.  Dawsey-Smith noted 

Gerber’s last concern was whether or not it’s possible to see the details of the audit and 

the memo where they specifically asked for more for transparency purposes and 

Dawsey-Smith recommended it go with the salary resolution so the Council would have 

the necessary information to decide.  Dawsey-Smith asked if staff was looking for a 

recommendation from the committee and Blitch confirmed.  Stone made a motion to 

recommend adding the Information Support Technician to Council.  Dawsey-Smith 

seconded.  Dawsey-Smith noted that if staff could include the audit and memo it would 

add weight to the recommendation.  Blitch stated she would request it and follow up.   

8. Employee Bonus 

a. Blitch explained that she would like this to be a guided discussion instead of just giving a 

blanket recommendation and that it would be easier to wait until later in November to 

see what funds are available to work with but they needed to start identifying who they 

wanted to give bonuses to and determining eligibility.  Stone stated he’s supportive of 

15

Item 3.



 

 

bonuses but wants to ensure they are equitable.  Dawsey-Smith recommended 

benchmarking what it would cost to purchase the necessary items to provide a holiday 

meal for a family and noted food is something that has been severely affected by 

inflation.  Stone noted if every employee receives a bonus it would be fair and that it 

would be the easiest way to administer it.  Dawsey-Smith stated she thought it would be 

meaningful on a culture side if the managers would be able to hand those out to their 

employees and that she would like something in writing when we make the decision 

that the finance committee made the recommendation as part of a retention strategy to 

address culture and the things not paycheck related. 

9. Future Agenda Items 

● Employee bonus update 

10. Discussion of Next Meeting Date 

Next regular meeting date was set for November 28, 2023 at 5:00pm. 

11. Adjournment 

Stone moved, Dawsey-Smith seconded adjournment. Motion carried on unanimous voice vote. 

Meeting adjourned at 5:25 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Rachelle Blitch 

Director of Finance and Administrative Services. 

16

Item 3.



 

 

ABSTRACT/SYNOPSIS OF THE ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF THE OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE FINANCE 

COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF WHITEWATER, WALWORTH AND JEFFERSON COUNTIES, WISCONSIN 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of November 28, 2023 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Dawsey-Smith called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 

Present at the meeting were committee members David Stone, Jill Gerber, and Lisa Dawsey 

Smith. 

Absent:  None.  Staff and guests present:  Finance Director Rachelle Blitch. 

 

2. Hearing of Citizen Comments  

None 

3. Staff Updates 

a. Financial Update – YTD through September 2023  

a. Dawsey-Smith stated she had sent two questions to the finance director earlier so 

she would have time to research and answer.  She explained her first question was 

regarding the negative revenue amount for mobile homes.  Blitch explained that the 

City has to send the school district the lottery fees earlier in the year and we will bill 

the mobile home park in December.  Dawsey-Smith stated her second question was 

regarding the weights and measure recovery which has nothing reported so far. 

Blitch explained that the City has to pay the state $1,600 a year to test gas pumps 

and then we bill the business and those invoices just went out yesterday.  Stone 

inquired about the revenue for the juvenile officer and whether the school district is 

contributing for that position.  Blitch confirmed the contract is for the school district 

to be responsible to pay the salary and benefits for the school resource officer.  

Gerber asked if the GL detail was included as part of the updated financials or if it 

was a separate item.  Blitch confirmed it was part of the financials.  Gerber stated 

this request was due to the access of $10,000 in administrative supplies in which she 

requested the GL detail.  She further explained that her concerns are whether some 

of the items in the detail were placed in the wrong account such as the copier lease, 

laptops, and breakroom supplies.  Blitch responded that she verified with the 

comptroller that these items were coded correctly.  She further explained that the 

copier expense has been charged to this account for the last several years, the 

laptops are considered supplies, and that the account for the break room had been 

created in the middle of the year so the items purchased after were charged to the 

breakroom account and all supplies for the break room will be charged to it moving 

forward.  Gerber stated her last concern was regarding the purchase of breakroom 

supplies as she was unaware the City was purchasing water, coffee, and snacks for 

employees and requested that an account be created for any department that 

chose to do the same so it is transparent for the taxpayers.  Blitch confirmed 

accounts would be created for all departments who would purchase these items. 

4. 2024 Salary Resolution 

17

Item 4.



 

 

a. Blitch explained she added an additional column for comments and highlighted all of the 

changes such as titles, FTE’s, new, and eliminated positions.  Stone stated he was 

concerned about how the approval of the new position for Assistant Parks, Recreation, 

& Community Events Director would be perceived by the police department as they 

need additional officers. Blitch inquired whether he would be supportive if the 

Recreation & Community Event Manager position was eliminated so it doesn’t appear as 

if an additional position was being added.  Stone stated he would not but he would be 

supportive of changing the salary range on the Recreation & Community Events 

Manager position as a possibility.  Gerber agreed.  Dawsey-Smith stated that whatever 

position would not be filled in 2024 should probably be eliminated from the resolution 

and if the position is needed in the future it can be brought back to Council. Gerber 

stated she didn’t agree with the use of ERP (Expenditure Restraint Program) as a means 

to move the salary ranges since it’s a total of 16.4% over the past two years.  She further 

explained she didn’t feel it was needed and the only way she would agree to this is if she 

was able to see the results of a compensation study and asked what CPI-U was 

currently.  Blitch stated she couldn’t recall if the current CPI-U was either 3.2% or 3.7% 

and that she would verify and follow up with the committee.  Gerber stated she would 

be more likely to go with CPI-U without having the results of the compensation study.  

She further explained that she was aware of the changes for the Economic Development 

Director, the Assistant Fire Chief, but the changes to FTE’s for the Media Coordinator 

and Producer were concerns for her. Gerber stated she is not supportive of increasing 

the FTE’s in the Media department because it is a sinking fund, she’s unsure if it brings a 

service to enough people to warrant the 3 FTE’s, and job descriptions were not included 

for her to compare what the Media Coordinator and Producer do compared to the Chief 

of Staff.  Gerber suggested the City may need to reevaluate what and who we are 

serving with the cable television station.  Gerber stated her concerns with changing the 

title from IT Administrator to IT Director and asked if the salary was changing.  Blitch 

stated it was not, only the title because his current duties align more with what an IT 

Director does than with what an IT Administrator does.  Gerber asked for the supporting 

documentation for this change.  Gerber stated she was not supportive of the 

Information Support Technician because we need more police officers and especially 

because the City is still relying on the services of Digicorp.  She acknowledged she would 

be supportive if she knew the funding for the outside IT services was being cut.  Gerber 

stated she would like to know how we are paying for all of this.  Blitch responded that all 

of the changes with the exception of the potential $25,000 in unbudgeted wages if ERP 

is used, are all in the budget already.  Geber stated she would rather pay for two new 

officers instead of the other positions.  Dawsey-Smith stated her understanding is that 

Media Services encompasses more than the cable television station, it’s Vimeo and 

recording the school districts meetings as well.  Gerber stated she was told the Chief of 

Staff was responsible for that and if her duties changed, the information had not been 

relayed back to Council.  Blitch responded asking if she wanted the job descriptions of 

the Chief of Staff, Media Coordinator, and Media Producer.  Gerber stated she wants 

the information of whatever has changed as she doesn’t feel the City should be 

investing in something we don’t know how many people it’s reaching.  Blitch clarified 

18

Item 4.



 

 

that the Media Coordinator was moving from a .8 to a 1 FTE and the Media Producer 

was moving from a .6 to a 1 FTE.  Dawsey-Smith stated she thought they used to have 

more than one part time media producer.  Stone responded that he believes they had 

three before.  Dawsey-Smith stated they had three plus the PR & Communication 

Manager.  Stone asked what percentage the City was using to move the salary ranges.  

Gerber responded it was ERP, 8.2% to both the top and bottom of the range and the 

City had given 3% raises so there is some leeway and she is suggesting the use of CPI-U.  

Dawsey-Smith explained that the previous finance director used ERP as a way to 

continually address the wage ranges so nothing was catastrophically out of synch. Blitch 

asked if she should include both ERP and CPI-U options to Council.  Gerber confirmed 

and asked to provide the list of employees who would be affected by moving the 

bottom of the range by 3.2%.  Blitch stated no employees would be affected.   

Motion: to present the 2024 Salary Resolution for consideration to Council with 

additional information regarding the use of ERP versus CPI-U for wage range treatment 

and additional information requested regarding position changes on a motion by 

Dawsey-Smith and seconded by N/A. 

Motion: to amend the motion to include the removal of the Assistant Parks, Recreation, 

& Community Events Director position on a motion by Stone and seconded by N/A.  

Dawsey-Smith explained that her motion would be to consider and not directly ask for 

approval so there would be an opportunity for the full body to discuss.  Stone explained 

that he isn’t comfortable with that because he doesn’t want it to appear to the police 

department that he sent this for approval.  Gerber stated she agreed with Stone.   

Motion: to send the 2024 Salary Resolution to Council with job descriptions, the 

comparison of ERP versus CPI-U, and with the removal of the Assistant Parks, 

Recreation, & Community Events Manager position by Stone and seconded by N/A.   

Gerber stated she thought there was a policy that stated ERP needed to be used to 

move the wage ranges and included the procedures for reevaluating the wages when a 

position vacated and requested that information be presented as well.  Blitch responded 

that she hasn’t found a policy that stated ERP needed to be used.  Dawsey-Smith noted 

that the prior policy was that 20% of positions would be benchmarked each year but 

that it hadn’t been followed.  Blitch stated that the policy review has been put on as a 

future agenda item and was requested by Stone.  She further explained that she asked 

HR to get a list of the policies so they can be brought to the committee and a schedule 

can be developed to start the review process. 

5. Employee Bonuses 

a. Blitch explained the two options provided based on the information requested from a 

previous meeting.  Gerber asked if the number of employees included those less than a 

year. Blitch confirmed.  Gerber stated she likes the flat rate option but doesn’t feel that 

employees with less than a year should be eligible.  Gerber requested the number of 

19

Item 4.



 

 

employees be sent in a follow up email.  Stone stated he preferred to give all employees a 

flat rate.  

 

Motion: to make a recommendation for 2023 surplus funds for employee bonuses with 

additional information to be provided for Council for consideration on a motion by 

Dawsey-Smith and seconded by Stone. Aye: Dawsey-Smith, Gerber, and Stone. No: None. 

6. Future Agenda Items 

● Policy Review 

● Compensation Study 

7. Discussion of Next Meeting Date 

Next regular meeting date was set for December 26, 2023 at 5:00pm. 

8. Adjournment 

Stone moved, Gerber seconded adjournment. Motion carried on unanimous voice vote. Meeting 

adjourned at 5:57 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Rachelle Blitch 

Director of Finance and Administrative Services. 

20

Item 4.



21

Item 5.



22

Item 5.



23

Item 5.



24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



 

 

 

1 mo 3 mo 6 mo 12 mo 2 yr 3 yr 5 yr 7 yr 10 yr 20 yr 30 yr

3/31/2022 0.17% 0.52% 1.06% 1.63% 2.28% 2.45% 2.42% 2.40% 2.32% 2.59% 2.44%

6/30/2022 1.28% 1.72% 2.51% 2.80% 2.92% 2.99% 3.01% 3.04% 2.98% 3.38% 3.01%

9/30/2022 2.79% 3.33% 3.92% 4.05% 4.22% 4.25% 4.06% 3.97% 3.83% 4.08% 3.79%

12/30/2022 4.12% 4.42% 4.76% 4.73% 4.41% 4.22% 3.99% 3.96% 3.88% 4.14% 3.97%

3/22/2023 4.16% 4.79% 4.95% 4.56% 3.96% 3.76% 3.54% 3.53% 3.48% 3.83% 3.68%

6/30/2023 5.20% 5.42% 5.42% 5.24% 4.64% 4.27% 3.95% 3.85% 3.75% 4.04% 3.87%

9/30/2023 5.53% 5.56% 5.51% 5.44% 5.02% 4.74% 4.49% 4.46% 4.38% 4.65% 4.47%

11/30/2023 3.87% 4.32% 4.61% 4.73% 4.50% 4.34% 4.06% 3.99% 3.89% 4.22% 4.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%
Yi

el
d

US Treasury: Constant Maturity

11.2

7.6

8.8

4.7
5.6 

6.1 

4.5 

9.1

6.0

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

12-Month Inflation Measures

PPI Final Demand PPI final Demand (less Food, Energy, Trade Svcs) CPI-U (All Items)

28

Item 5.



 

29

Item 5.


	Top
	Item 1.	October 12, 2023 Meeting Minutes
	2023-10-12 Fin Ctee Minutes

	Item 2.	October 16, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	2023-10-16 Fin Ctee Minutes

	Item 3.	October 24, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	2023-10-24 Fin Ctee Minutes

	Item 4.	November 28, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	2023-11-28 Fin Ctee Minutes

	Item 5.	November 2023 Financials
	November 2023 Financials
	Graphs as of 11.30.2023

	Bottom

